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April 25th, 2025 
File No. PA-2023-049 

 

 

 
Application Summary: 8-unit street townhouse development 
 
Roads:  
 
Hibbard Street is designated as an Local Road as per the Town’s current Official Plan. The 
designated road width is 20m. The current width is substantially deficient with an approximate 
width of 3.9m. Town Staff acknowledges that some sections of roads throughout the Town are 
considered as “Laneways” and operate with a deficient road width, Town Staff note that Willow 
Trail, a subdivision to the East was subject to a road widening  of 1.52m (measured from the 
centreline of the road).  
 
Town Staff will require a road widening of approximately 1.52m (measured from the 
centreline of the road).  
 
 
Additionally, Staff require that Hibbard Street be upgraded to an urban cross section, 
complete with curb and gutter from the western limit of the subject lands to the eastern 
limit of 3627 Hibbard Street. 
 
 

 
Comments/Requirements:  
 

• Sidewalks currently exist along the north frontage to the east, installed with the above 
noted Willow Trail plan of subdivision. Considering sidewalks are required on one-side of 
Local roads only, as per the Town’s Official Plan and the Ridgeway – Thunder Bay 
Secondary Plan, and the limiting space within the existing road allowance, regardless of 
the required above noted widening, no additional accommodations for a sidewalk along 
the subject land frontage shall be provisioned with this proposal. 

 

• Town staff will require a Functional Servicing Report (FSR) identifying the existing 
services, their size, material, capacity and if they are being proposed for re-use for the 
development site. Confirmation that sizing, material, location, capacity etc. proposed for 
re-use are in suitable condition and meet Town standards and requirements. Verification 
and calculations shall be provided for all servicing and design shall be in accordance 

To:  Robin Shugan, Intermediate Development Planner 

From:  Taylor Boyle, Project Manager, Development Engineering 

 

Subject:  Preliminary Development Engineering Comments 

Pre-Consultation 

 

Address:  0-8227 Hibbard Street 
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with Niagara Region’s 2021 Water and Wastewater Master Servicing Plan Update, 
Volume 3, dated June 22, 2023. The FSR shall also provide all required information and 
flow rates to confirm downstream sewers have sufficient capacity to receive the 
additional flows and meet the demands for the proposed development site. 
 
The submitted Functional Servicing Report will be peer-reviewed by the Town’s Sanitary 
Sewer Consultant, GMBlue Plan. The analysis by the Town’s Consultant shall comment 
on and provide recommendations for the existing downstream system, if any.  
The submission of this Functional Servicing component and recommendations thereof to 
the downstream system, if any, as a result of the peer-review, shall be required at the 
Site Plan Submission phase. In the event there are capacity constraints, the Site Plan 
Agreement will include a condition stating how works can be completed until such time 
as recommendations for improvements downstream, if any, are implemented 
accordingly, at 100% Owner costs.   

 

• It is common that in-fill developments such as this increase the drainage challenges 
where acceptable outlets do not currently exist. Town staff will require a Stormwater 
Management Report demonstrating how storm water runoff will be maintained and 
matched from post- to pre- development and demonstrate that the additional runoff will 
not negatively impact nor rely upon neighboring properties. 
 

o Please be advised that stormwater: 
 QUALITY controls must be to an Enhanced Standard; and 
 QUANTITY control must meet pre-development flows rates for the 2-year 

to the 100-year storm events minimum. 
 

• Staff require that the Owner/Applicants have a Consulting Engineer prepare and submit 
a Proposed Erosion & Sediment Control Plan to the Town for review and approval. 
This document shall contain (but is not limited to):  
 

o Sediment traps or temporary retention ponds; 
o Seeding of topsoil stock piles;  
o Isolated stripping of development lands, upon arrival; 
o Vegetated screens;  
o Silt and erosion control fencing; 
o Mud mats, and outlet erosion controls (riprap, filter clothe etc): and 
o Construction staging.  

 

•  Town staff suggest that the Owner/Applicant obtain a Pre-Construction Condition 
Survey of all existing abutting properties and structures. The purpose of this is to obtain 
independent documentary evidence of the conditions of the adjacent buildings, 
structures, features etc. prior to construction activities commencing.  
 

• Town staff will require a Site Servicing Plan showing both the existing and proposed 
site services for water, storm and sanitary. The plan is to include location, size, material, 
inverts, etc. from the municipal main to the building face for all services. 
 

• Town staff will require a Lot Grading and Drainage Plan demonstrating that storm 
water runoff will not negatively impact nor rely upon neighboring properties. The plan 
shall include all existing and proposed downspout discharge locations, all hardscape 
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surfaces and all physical features including decks, trees, walkways, pools, etc. both 
existing and proposed. 
 
As per Town Standards, no more than four lots shall be accommodated by rear yard 
swales to a proposed RYCB.  
 
The locations and directions of the roof water discharge pipes and sump 
pumps shall be identified on the Lot Grading and Drainage Plan, prepared and 
certified by a Professional Engineer. 

 
 
Please note that these comments are preliminary and reflect the concept proposed for these 
lands at the time of this application / pre-consultation and may be subject to change. Trusting 
this information is satisfactory, and if you have any further questions or comments, please feel 
free to contact Taylor Boyle at extension 2505,  
 
Regards, 
 
 
Taylor Boyle  
Project Manager, Development Engineering  
 
 
c.  Mark Iamarino, PDS (email only) 
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